
2424 
DPFG Management & Consulting, LLC 

 
 
 
 
 

AVALON GROVES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT 

 
 

Agenda Package 
 
 

Board of Supervisors 
Meeting 

 

 
 

Date & Time: 
Thursday 

April 26, 2018 
11:30 a.m. 

 
 

Location: 
Cagan Crossing 

Community Library 
16729 Cagan Oaks 
Clermont, Florida 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Note:   The Advanced Meeting Package is a working document and thus all  materials 
are considered DRAFTS prior to presentation and Board acceptance, approval or 

adoption. 
 
 
 

 



 Avalon Groves 
Community Development District 

DPFG Management & Consulting, LLC 
[X] 1060 Maitland Center Commons, Suite 340 [ ] 15310 Amberly Drive, Suite 175 

Maitland, Florida 32751 
321-263-0134 

T ampa, Florida 33647 
813-374-9105 

 
 
 
April 22, 2018 

 
 
Board of Supervisors 
Avalon Groves Community 
Development District 

 
Dear Board Members: 

 
The R e g u l a r Meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Avalon Groves Community 
Development District is scheduled for Thursday, April 26, 2018 at 11:30 a.m. at the Cagan Crossing 
Community Librar y, 16729 Cagan Oaks, Clermont, Florida. 

 
The advanced copy of the agenda for the meeting is attached along with associated documentation for 
your review and consideration.  Any additional support material will be distributed at the meeting. 

 
The balance of the agenda is routine in nature.  Staff will present their reports at the meeting.  If you have 
any questions, please contact me.  I look forward to seeing you there. 

 
Sincerely, 

 

 

Patricia Comings-Thibault 
Patricia Comings-Thibault 
District Manager 

 
cc: Attorney 

Engineer 
District Records 

 



Page 1 of 1 
 

District: AVALON GROVES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
Date of Meeting: Thursday, April 26, 2018 
Time: 11:30 a.m. 
Location: Cagan Crossing Community Library 
 16729 Cagan Oaks 
 Clermont, FL  
 Dial-in Number: 712-775-7031  
 Guest Access Code:  109-516-380 

 
Agenda 

I. Roll Call 
 
II. Audience Comments 
 
III. Administrative Matters 
 A. Approval of Minutes of January 25, 2018 Meeting  Exhibit 1 
 
 B. Acceptance of the Unaudited March, 2018 Financials Exhibit 2 
    
IV. Business Items 
 
    A. Ratification of Jon Hall Change Order #4- $20,915.20 – Total Contract   Exhibit 3 
  Price Incorporating Change Order - $3,212,216.53 
 
 B. Ratification of Jon Hall Change Order #5 – ($8,850.51) – Total Contract  Exhibit 4 
  Price Incorporating Change Order - $3,203,386.02 
 
 C. Consideration of Randy Suggs Change Order #1 - $76,063.20  Exhibit 5 
  Total Contract Incorporating Change Order  - $468,161.58 
 
 D.  Discussion & Consideration of Randy Suggs Agreement for  Exhibit 6 
  Landscape Maintenance Services - $105,420 Annually 
 
 E. Discussion & Consideration of Graybar Financial Services Proposal Exhibit 7 
  For Streetlights  
 
 F. Acceptance of Resignation of David Langhout Exhibit 8  
 
 G. Appointment of New Supervisor – Oath of Office & Form 1 Exhibit 9 

 Waive or Accept Compensation 
 
 H. Consideration of Resolution 2018-03, A Re-Designation of Officers Exhibit 10 
 
 I. Consideration of Resolution 2018-04, Landowner Election Resolution  

(to be distributed) 
 

 
 
 



AVALON GROVES CDD AGENDA April 26, 2018 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 
 V. Staff Reports 
 A. Manager 
  
 B. Attorney  
  
 C. Engineer   
 
VI. Supervisors Requests 
 
 
VII. Adjournment 



  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 1 



MINUTES OF MEETING 1 
AVALON GROVES 2 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 3 
 4 

 The Regular Meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Avalon Groves Community 5 

Development District was held on Thursday, January 25, 2017 at 11:30 a.m. at the Cagan Crossing 6 

Community Library, 16729 Cagan Oaks, Clermont, Florida. 7 

FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS - Roll Call 8 

Ms. Comings-Thibault called the meeting to order. 9 

Present and constituting a quorum were:     10 

Jim Harvey   Board Supervisor, Chairman 11 
Greg Meath   Board Supervisor, Vice Chairman  12 
Candice Smith    Board Supervisor, Assistant Secretary (joined in progress)  13 
Troy Simpson   Board Supervisor, Assistant Secretary 14 
 15 

Also present were: 16 

Patricia Coming-Thibault District Manager 17 
Jere Earlywine   District Counsel (via phone) 18 
Victor Barbosa   District Engineer (via phone) 19 
  20 

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS – Audience Comments 21 

 There being none, the next item followed. 22 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS – Administrative Matters 23 

A. Approval of Minutes of December 18, 2017 Meeting 24 

Ms. Comings-Thibault presented the Minutes of the December 18, 2017 Meeting and asked for 25 

comments, questions or corrections. 26 

On a MOTION by Mr. Meath, SECONDED by Mr. Simpson, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board 27 
approved the minutes of December 18, 2017 for the Avalon Groves Community Development District.  28 

 29 
B. Acceptance of the Unaudited December 2017 Financials 30 

Ms. Comings-Thibault presented the Unaudited December 2017 Financials and asked for 31 

comments or questions. 32 

On a MOTION by Mr. Harvey, SECONDED by Mr. Meath, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board 33 
approved Unaudited December 2017 Financials, as presented, for the Avalon Groves Community 34 
Development District.  35 
 36 
FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS – Business Items 37 

 A. Consideration & Approval of Audit Committee Auditor Recommendation 38 

Ms. Comings-Thibault presented Consideration & Approval of Audit Committee Auditor 39 

Recommendation and asked for comments or questions. 40 



Avalon Groves CDD  January 25, 2018 
Regular Meeting  Page 2 of 3 
 
On a MOTION by Mr. Harvey, SECONDED by Mr. Meath, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board 41 
approved Consideration & Approval of Audit Committee Auditor Recommendation- Dibartolomeo, 42 
McBee, Hartley & Gaines for the Avalon Groves Community Development District.   43 

  44 
FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS – Staff Reports 45 

 A. Manager 46 

 There being none, next item followed. 47 

B. Attorney 48 

Mr. Earlywine gave an update and asked for a motion to ratify the approval of the $7,019 49 

settlement claim. 50 

On a MOTION by Mr. Harvey, SECONDED by Mr. Meath, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board 51 
approved the settlement claim for $7,019 for the Avalon Groves Community Development District.   52 

C. Engineer 53 

There being none, next item followed. 54 

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS – Supervisor Request 55 

 There being none, next item followed.  56 

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS – Adjournment 57 

On a MOTION by Mr. Meath, SECONDED by Mr. Harvey, WITH ALL IN FAVOR, the Board 58 
adjourned the meeting for the Avalon Groves Community Development District. 59 
 60 
*Each person who decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter 61 
considered at the meeting is advised that person may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the 62 
proceedings is made, including the testimony and evidence upon which such appeal is to be based. 63 

 64 
Meeting minutes were approved at a meeting by vote of the Board of Supervisors at a publicly noticed 65 
meeting held on ________________________. 66 
 67 
             68 
Signature      Signature 69 
 70 
             71 
Printed Name      Printed Name 72 
Title: □ Secretary □ Assistant Secretary  Title: □ Chairman         □Vice Chairman 73 
 74 

 75 

 76 

 77 

 78 



Avalon Groves CDD  January 25, 2018 
Regular Meeting  Page 3 of 3 
 
 79 



  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 2 



Avalon Groves
Community Development District

Summary Financial Statements
(Unaudited)

Period Ending
March 31, 2018



Avalon Groves Community Development District
Balance Sheet
Unaudited

March 31, 2018

GENERAL
FUND 2017 (AA1) 2017A-1 (AA2) 2017A-2 (AA2) CIP (AA1) CIP A-1 (AA2) CIP A-2 (AA2) TOTAL

ASSETS:

CASH $ 61,381 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 61,381
INVESTMENTS:
REVENUE FUND - 82,583 38,048 - - - - 120,631
CAP INTEREST - 68,772 215,556 129,653 - - - 413,981
DS RESERVE - 171,745 522,093 266,181 - - - 960,019
COST OF ISSUANCE - 4,968 11,650 2,096 - - - 18,714
PREPAYMENT ACCOUNT - - - 415,865 - - - 415,865
ACQ. & CONST. 2017 (AA1) - - - - 1,180,588 - - 1,180,588
ACQ. & CONST. 2017A-1 (AA2) - - - - - 223,373 - 223,373
ACQ. & CONST. 2017A-2 (AA2) - - - - - - 878,474 878,474

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 3,990 - - - - - - 3,990
DEPOSITS 453

TOTAL ASSETS $ 65,824 $ 328,068 $ 787,347 $ 813,795 $ 1,180,588 $ 223,373 $ 878,474 $ 4,277,015

LIABILITIES:

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE $ 7,000 $ - $ - $ - $ 26,955 $ 287,068 $ 121,387 $ 442,410
RETAINAGE PAYABLE - - - - - 162,460 91,745 254,205

FUND BALANCE:

NONSPENDABLE:
PREPAID AND DEPOSITS 453 - - - - - - -

ASSIGNED:
OPERATING RESERVES - - - - - - - -
RESERVES - ROADWAYS - - - - - - - -

UNASSIGNED: 58,371 328,068 787,347 813,795 1,153,633 (226,155) 665,342 3,580,400

TOTAL LIABILITIES & FUND BALANCE $ 65,824 $ 328,068 $ 787,347 $ 813,795 $ 1,180,588 $ 223,373 $ 878,474 $ 4,277,015

Page 2 of 11



Avalon Groves Community Development District
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures And Change In Fund Balance

For The Period Ending March 31, 2018

FY2017 VARIANCE
ADOPTED BUDGET ACTUAL FAVORABLE
BUDGET YEAR-TO-DATE YEAR-TO-DATE (UNFAVORABLE)

REVENUES
SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS (LANDOWNER OFF-ROLL) $ 300,474 $ - $ 92,673 $ 92,673
DEVELOPER FUNDING - - 43,036 43,036

TOTAL REVENUES 300,474 - 135,709 135,709

EXPENDITURES
GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE
DISTRICT MANAGEMENT SERVICES 8,000 4,000 - 4,000
DISTRICT ACCOUNTING SERVICES 24,000 12,000 18,000 (6,000)
BANK FEES 150 75 - 75
AUDITING 3,500 1,750 - 1,750
REGULATORY & PERMIT FEES 175 175 175 -
LEGAL ADVERTISEMENTS 750 375 889 (514)
ENGINEERING SERVICES 10,000 5,000 1,719 3,281
LEGAL SERVICES 16,000 8,000 28,143 (20,143)
TECHNOLOGY & WEBSITE ADMIN. 960 480 500 (20)
AD-VALOREM TAXES - - 3,099 (3,099)
MISCELLANEOUS (appraisal, etc.) 500 250 5 245

TOTAL GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE 64,035 32,105 52,530 (20,425)

INSURANCE
INSURANCE 5,851 5,851 5,300 551

TOTAL INSURANCE 5,851 5,851 5,300 551

DEBT SERVICE ADMIN.
DISCLOSURE REPORT 5,000 5,000 5,000 -
ARBITRAGE REBATE 700 - - -
TRUSTEE FEES 3,800 3,800 7,000 (3,200)

TOTAL DEBT ADMINISTRATION 9,500 8,800 12,000 (3,200)

UTILITIES
UTILITIES-ELECTRICITY 2,500 1,250 - 1,250
STREETLIGHTS 62,454 31,227 - 31,227
UTILITY CONTINGENCY 5,000 2,500 - 2,500
TOTAL UTILITIES 69,954 34,977 - 34,977

PHYSICAL ENVIRONMENT
LAKE & POND MAINTENANCE 20,400 10,200 1,070 9,130
LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE 95,734 47,867 5,985 41,882
LANDSCAPE - MISC. 5,000 2,500 - 2,500
WETLAND MITIGATION & MAINTENANCE 14,000 7,000 - 7,000
FIELD MANAGEMENT 6,000 3,000 - 3,000
FIELD CONTINGENCY 5,000 2,500 - 2,500
HARDSCAPE REPAIRS & MAINT. 5,000 2,500 - 2,500

TOTAL PHYSICAL ENVIRONMENT EXPENDITURES 151,134 75,567 7,055 68,512

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 300,474 157,300 76,885 80,415

EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES - (157,300) 58,824 216,124

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING - - - -

FUND BALANCE - ENDING $ - $ (157,300) $ 58,824 $ 216,124

Page 3 of 11



Avalon Groves Community Development District
SERIES 2017A-1 (AA1)

For The Period Starting October 1, 2017 Ending March 31, 2018

FY2018 VARIANCE
ADOPTED BUDGET ACTUAL FAVORABLE
BUDGET YEAR-TO-DATE YEAR-TO-DATE (UNFAVORABLE)

REVENUE

SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS - ON/OFF ROLL $ 185,153 111,092 $ 82,583 $ (28,509)
INTEREST - - 1,154 1,154
LESS: DISCOUNT ASSESSMENTS (4%) (7,715) - - -

TOTAL REVENUE 177,438 111,092 83,737 (27,355)

EXPENDITURES

COUNTY - ASSESSMENT COLLECTION FEES 7,715 - - -
INTEREST EXPENSE -
MAY 1, 2018 67,856 - - -
NOVEMBER 1, 2018 67,856 - - -
PRINCIPAL RETIREMENT
MAY 1, 2018 - - - -

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 143,427 - - -

EXCESS REVENUE OVER (UNDER) EXPEND. 34,011 111,092 83,737 (27,355)

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING - 244,331 244,331

FUND BALANCE - ENDING $ 34,011.00 $ 111,092 $ 328,068 $ 216,976



Avalon Groves Community Development District
SERIES 2017A-1 (AA2)

For The Period Starting October 1, 2017 Ending March 31, 2018

FY2018 VARIANCE
ADOPTED BUDGET ACTUAL FAVORABLE
BUDGET YEAR-TO-DATE YEAR-TO-DATE (UNFAVORABLE)

REVENUE

SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS - ON/OFF ROLL $ 562,845 337,707 $ 37,994 $ (299,713)
INTEREST - - 3,583 3,583
LESS: DISCOUNT ASSESSMENTS (4%) (23,452) - - -

TOTAL REVENUE 539,393 337,707 41,577 (296,130)

EXPENDITURES

COUNTY - ASSESSMENT COLLECTION FEES (3.5%) 23,452 - - -
INTEREST EXPENSE -
MAY 1, 2018 212,684 - - -
NOVEMBER 1, 2018 212,684 - - -
PRINCIPAL RETIREMENT
MAY 1, 2018 - - - -

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 448,820 - - -

EXCESS REVENUE OVER (UNDER) EXPEND. 90,573 337,707 41,577 (296,130)

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING - 745,770 745,770

FUND BALANCE - ENDING $ 90,573.00 $ 337,707 $ 787,347 $ 449,640



Avalon Groves Community Development District
SERIES 2017A-2 (AA2)

For The Period Starting October 1, 2017 Ending March 31, 2018

FY2018 VARIANCE
ADOPTED BUDGET ACTUAL FAVORABLE
BUDGET YEAR-TO-DATE YEAR-TO-DATE (UNFAVORABLE)

REVENUE

SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS - ON/OFF ROLL $ 286,957 286,957 $ 690,114 $ 403,157
INTEREST - - 2,657 2,657
LESS: DISCOUNT ASSESSMENTS (4%) (11,957) - - -

TOTAL REVENUE 275,000 286,957 692,771 405,814

EXPENDITURES

COUNTY - ASSESSMENT COLLECTION FEES 11,957 - - -
INTEREST EXPENSE -
MAY 1, 2018 132,000 - 4,125 (4,125)
NOVEMBER 1, 2018 132,000 - - -
PRINCIPAL PREPAYMENT 275,000
MAY 1, 2018 - - - -

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 275,957 - 279,125 (4,125)

EXCESS REVENUE OVER (UNDER) EXPEND. (957) 286,957 413,646 409,939

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING - 400,149 400,149

FUND BALANCE - ENDING $ (957.00) $ 286,957 $ 813,795 $ 810,088



Avalon Groves Community Development District
Construction In Progress (AA1)

Statement of Revenue, Expenditures And Changes In Fund Balance

For The Period Ending March 31, 2018

REVENUES

ACTUAL
YEAR-TO-DATE

BOND PROCEEDS $ -
INTEREST 5,509

TOTAL REVENUES 5,509

EXPENDITURES
CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 93,293
TRUSTEE FEES -

TOTAL EXPENSE 93,293

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 93,293

EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (87,784)
TRANSFER IN -
TRANSFER OUT -
FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 1,241,417

FUND BALANCE - ENDING $ 1,153,633



Avalon Groves Community Development District
Construction In Progress A-1 (AA2)

Statement of Revenue, Expenditures And Changes In Fund Balance

For The Period Ending March 31, 2018

REVENUES

ACTUAL
YEAR-TO-DATE

BOND PROCEEDS $ -
INTEREST 3,144

TOTAL REVENUES 3,144

EXPENDITURES
CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 1,216,807
TRUSTEE FEES -

TOTAL EXPENSE 1,216,807

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,216,807

EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (1,213,663)
TRANSFER IN -
TRANSFER OUT -
FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 987,508

FUND BALANCE - ENDING $ (226,155)



Avalon Groves Community Development District
Construction In Progress A-2 (AA2)

Statement of Revenue, Expenditures And Changes In Fund Balance

For The Period Ending March 31, 2018

REVENUES
INSURANCE CLAIM

ACTUAL
YEAR-TO-DATE

$ 719,000
INTEREST 4,963

TOTAL REVENUES 723,963

EXPENDITURES
CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 1,427,043
TRUSTEE FEES -

TOTAL EXPENSE 1,427,043

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,427,043

EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES (703,080)
TRANSFER IN -
TRANSFER OUT -
FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING 1,368,421

FUND BALANCE - ENDING $ 665,341



Avalon Groves Community Development District
General Fund - Bank Reconciliation

Operating Accounts
March 31, 2018

BU

Balance Per Bank Statement $ 61,380.82

Less: Outstanding AP Checks -

Adjusted Bank Balance $ 61,380.82

Beginning Bank Balance Per Books $ 74,916.50

Deposits & Interest 9,304.50

Cash Disbursements (22,840.18)

Balance Per Books $ 61,380.82

Page 10 of 11



Avalon Groves CDD
Check Register

Operating Account
FY 2018

DATE CK NO. PAYEE TRANSACTION DEPOSIT DISBURSEMENT BALANCE
9/30/2017 EOY Balance 0.00 159.29 0.00

10/06/2017 Developer Funding GF 2017-26 7,919.77 7,919.77
10/06/2017 1050 Egis Insurance Risk Advisors Ins. FY 2018 5,300.00 2,619.77
10/06/2017 1051 Heidt Design Engineering Svcs 205.00 2,414.77
10/06/2017 1052 Orlando Sentinel Legal Ads 2,177.04 237.73
10/06/2017 1053 Venturesin.com, Inc. Web Site Hosting - September 80.00 157.73
10/13/2017 Developer Funding GF 2017-25 22,988.66 23,146.39
10/13/2017 1054 Daily Commercial Legal Ad 129.68 23,016.71
10/13/2017 1055 DPFG MANAGEMENT AND CONSULTING, LLC BOS Mtg - 8/24/17 4,000.00 19,016.71
10/13/2017 1056 Heidt Design Design Svcs - July 670.00 18,346.71
10/13/2017 1057 Hopping Green & Sams Legal Services 13,188.98 5,157.73
10/13/2017 1058 Regions Bank. Fees - Series 2017 5,000.00 157.73
10/18/2017 1059 Daily Commercial VOID 0.00 157.73
10/18/2017 1060 Daily Commercial Legal Ad 26.18 131.55
10/31/2017 EOM Balance 30,908.43 30,776.88 131.55
11/01/2017 O & M (K Title) 4,342.10 4,473.65
11/03/2017 1061 Daily Commercial Legal Ad 183.91 4,289.74
11/03/2017 1062 Venturesin.com, Inc. Web Site Hosting - October 80.00 4,209.74
11/03/2017 1063 FLORIDA DEPT OF ECONOMIC OPPORTUNIT Annual Filing - FY 2018 175.00 4,034.74
11/14/2017 1064 Daily Commercial Legal Ad 144.64 3,890.10
11/29/2017 1065 BOB McKEE, LAKE COUNTY TAX COLLECTOR Ad Valorem Taxes 2,738.30 1,151.80
11/30/2017 1066 BOB McKEE, LAKE COUNTY TAX COLLECTOR Property Tax 361.17 790.63
11/30/2017 EOM Balance 4,342.10 3,683.02 790.63
12/08/2017 1067 LAKE & WETLAND MANAGEMENT Lake Maint - December 535.00 255.63
12/08/2017 1068 Orlando Sentinel Legal Ad 283.17 -27.54
12/09/2017 Ashton Orlando O & M (K Title) 3,101.50 3,073.96
12/14/2017 NVR Settlement O & M (K Title) 1,240.60 4,314.56
12/27/2017 1069 Sumter Electric Cooperative Voided 0.00 4,314.56
12/27/2017 1070 Sumter Electric Cooperative Voided 0.00 4,314.56
12/27/2017 1071 Sumter Electric Cooperative Deposit - 17494 Sawgrass Bay Bl 193.00 4,121.56
12/27/2017 1072 Sumter Electric Cooperative Deposit - 16920 Sawgrass Bay Bl 193.00 3,928.56
12/27/2017 Developer Funding GF 2018-01 20,731.55 24,660.11
12/28/2017 1073 DPFG MANAGEMENT AND CONSULTING, LLC Oct-Dec Fees / Dissimenation 13,000.00 11,660.11
12/28/2017 1074 Heidt Design Engineering Svcs 968.75 10,691.36
12/28/2017 1075 Hopping Green & Sams Legal Services 6,582.81 4,108.55
12/28/2017 1076 Venturesin.com, Inc. Website Host - Nov 179.99 3,928.56
12/31/2017 EOM Balance 25,073.65 21,935.72 3,928.56
01/11/2018 Developer Funding O & M (K Title) 1,240.60 5,169.16
01/15/2018 1077 Daily Commercial Legal Ad 150.25 5,018.91
01/18/2018 1078 Heidt Design Engineering Svcs 205.00 4,813.91
01/18/2018 1079 Venturesin.com, Inc. Web Site Hosting - January 80.00 4,733.91
01/29/2018 1080 DPFG MANAGEMENT AND CONSULTING, LLC CDD Mgmt - January 2,000.00 2,733.91
01/31/2018 Developer Funding O & M (K Title) 2,481.20 5,215.11
1/31/2018 EOM Balance 3,721.80 2,435.25 5,215.11
02/07/2018 1081 DPFG MANAGEMENT AND CONSULTING, LLC CDD Mgmt - February 2,000.00 3,215.11
02/07/2018 1082 Heidt Design Engineering Svcs - November 340.00 2,875.11
02/07/2018 1083 Orlando Sentinel Legal Ad 101.25 2,773.86
02/07/2018 1084 Venturesin.com, Inc. Web Site Hosting - February 80.00 2,693.86
02/07/2018 1085 LAKE & WETLAND MANAGEMENT Lake Maint - February 535.00 2,158.86
02/13/2018 1086 Daily Commercial VOIDED 0.00 2,158.86
02/20/2018 1087 Heidt Design Engineering Services 205.00 1,953.86
02/21/2018 1088 Voided Check VOIDED 0.00 1,953.86
02/21/2018 Developer Funding GF 2018-02 18,515.93 20,469.79
02/21/2018 1089 Hopping Green & Sams Legal Services 16,515.93 3,953.86
02/27/2018 DR Horton O & M (Old Republic National Titl 70,962.64 74,916.50
2/28/2018 EOM Balance 89,478.57 19,777.18 74,916.50
03/01/2018 K Title Company O & M (K Title Co) 8,063.90 82,980.40
03/02/2018 1090 Hopping Green & Sams Legal Services 7,952.68 75,027.72
03/02/2018 1091 U.S. LAWNS Landscape Maint. Jan-Mar 5,985.00 69,042.72
03/02/2018 1092 Venturesin.com, Inc. Web Site Hosting - March 80.00 68,962.72

1093 Voided check 0.00 68,962.72
03/12/2018 1094 Hopping Green & Sams Legal Servies 2,750.50 66,212.22
03/12/2018 1095 Candice Smith Voided check 0.00 66,212.22
03/14/2018 1096 DPFG MANAGEMENT AND CONSULTING, LLC CDD - Mtg 6,000.00 60,212.22
03/15/2018 1097 Sumter Electric Cooperative Deposit/Membership Fee 72.00 60,140.22
03/18/2018 K Title Company O & M (K Title) 1,240.60 61,380.82
3/31/2018 EOM Balance 9,304.50 22,840.18 61,380.82

Page 11 of 11



  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 3 



AVALON GROVES CHANGE ORDER ANALYSIS - 04/20/2018
SERENOA VILLAGES 1&2 - Phase 1A

Contract Amount Board Approved/Notes
Original Contract $ 2,725,756.65

Change Order 1 - Add Turn Lanes to Villages $ 73,828.00 Agrees to 12.30.2017 Pay App
Change Order 2 - Speed Bumps $ 18,700.00 Approved 12/18/2017

$ 92,528.00

Total Contract TO Date $ 2,818,284.65

UNAPPROVED CHANGE ORDERS

SAWGRASS BAY PHASE - 1&2
Original Contract - Jon Hall $ 2,300,228.53

Change Order 1 - Paving Eastbound Lanes-Active Adult $ 214,768.80 8/24/2017
Change Order 2 - Reconstruction $ 681,773.00 10/26/2017
Change Order 3 - Deduct from scope of work $ (5,469.00) 12/18/2017
Change Order 4 - Construciton of Cofferdam $ 20,915.20
Change Order 5 - Deduct from Scope of Work $ (8,850.51)

$ 903,137.49

Total Contract To Date $ 3,203,366.02

Original Contract - Randy Suggs $ 392,098.38
Change Order 1 - Sawgraa Bay Boulevard $ 76,063.20

Total Contract to Date $ 468,161.58









  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 4 







  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 5 









  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 6 



Page 1 of 5 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Avalon Groves CDD 

1060 Maitland Center Commons Ste. 340 

Maitland, FL 32751 

 

Dear Ms. Candice Smith, 

 

Thank you for allowing us the opportunity to submit a proposal for the care and maintenance of 
your lawn in Clermont. Randy Suggs, Inc. has been the premier choice for landscaping and 
environmental services in the Central Florida area for 40 years. We were founded on the principles 
of a simple maxim: Do it right the first time. With this in mind, we continually strive for complete 
customer satisfaction through rigorous quality control and operating on only the highest standards 
of excellence. Our goal is to make sure that your landscaping has that certain something which sets it 
apart and provides you with the greatest level of enjoyment. 

 

Lawn Services       Monthly Yearly 

Landscape Maintenance      $6,685.00 $80,220.00                     
Spray/ Fertilization Application     $1,200.00 $14,400.00          
Irrigation Checks       $900.00 $10,800.00 

 

Additional services, such as mulch replacement, annual installation, and tree/ palm trimming above 
12’ are available for an extra fee on a per-needed basis. 

 

Once again, thank you for your time and consideration of this proposal. I have no doubt that you 
will be pleased by choosing Randy Suggs, Inc. for your landscaping needs. If you have any questions 
or concerns, please do not hesitate to contact me at 407-886-8835. 

 

Thank You, 

 

Brandon Colte Suggs 
Randy Suggs, Inc. 



Page 2 of 5 
 

Randy Suggs, Inc. 
Turf & Ornamental Care Service Agreement 

 
This agreement is made between Randy Suggs, Inc. with an address of P.O. Box 1141 Apopka, FL 
32704 and Avalon Groves CDD with an address of 1060 Maitland Center Commons Ste. 340, 
Maitland, FL. 32751 on this 1st day of June, 2018. 
 

I. Description of Work. Contractor agrees to provide all labor, supervision, 
equipment, and transportation necessary to execute this agreement and perform the lawn 
maintenance services specified in the scope of work. There shall be no variance from the 
scope of work unless expressly stated through an addendum to this agreement 
 

II. Length of Agreement. This agreement shall begin on the 1st day of June, 2018 and 
continue for a period of one year ending on the 31st day of May, 2019. This agreement 
will automatically renew for an additional one-year period under the same terms and 
conditions unless modified or cancelled by either party at least thirty days prior to the 
renewal date. Any services provided before the starting date of this agreement shall be 
billed on a pro-rata basis. 

 
 

III. Compensation for Services. Owner/ Agent agrees to pay Contractor $105,420.00 
per year as total compensation for performance of the terms of this agreement. Billing 
shall be done and payment made on a monthly basis at $8,785.00 per invoice. Services 
requested and provided outside of the scope of services shall be billed additionally 
during the month in which the service and/ or products were provided. Payment for 
services in a particular month will be due and payable to the contractor not later than the 
twentieth (20th) of the month for which the service is billable. All invoices not paid 
within thirty (30) days will be subject to a 1.5% service charge, or 18% annually. Invoices 
shall be sent electronically, when possible, to the Email address on file for the Owner/ 
Agent. If no Email address is available, invoices will be sent to: 1060 Maitland Center 
Commons Ste. 340, Maitland, FL. 32751. 
 

IV. Location of Services. All services within the scope of this agreement will be 
performed by the Contractor at Serenoa Community, Sawgrass Bay Blvd. and Serenoa 
Villages. 
 

V. Schedule of Service. Contractor shall perform services within the scope of this 
agreement on a routine basis during normal working days and hours. While requests for 
specific days and times cannot always be guaranteed, Contractor will make every attempt 
to schedule service at a time that takes into consideration the needs of the Owner/ 
Agent and the overall function of the property. Due to forces beyond the reasonable 
control of the Contractor, such as inclement weather, Acts of God, and other force 
majeure, it may, from time to time, be necessary to temporarily reschedule the day and 
time during which service is to be performed. Contractor will make every attempt to 
provide Owner/ Agent with prior notice if such a situation arises. Due to the 



Page 3 of 5 
 

unpredictable nature of Florida weather, it may not always be possible to provide prior 
notice. Such delays and rescheduling will not affect or diminish the services and scope of 
work to be provided under this agreement. 
 

VI. Insurance and Licenses.  Contract will provide to Owner/ Agent, upon 
request, evidence of required insurance. Contractor further agrees to maintain at all times 
all licenses and permits necessary to perform the services of this agreement. 

 
VII. Property Damage. Contractor agrees to reimburse Owner/ Agent for any 

damages personal and/or real property of the aforementioned property, which is caused 
by the Contractor’s employees or agents. Damages must be reported to the Contractor 
within forty-eight (48) hours after the work was performed which caused the damage. 
Damages not reported within forty-eight (48) hours will be repaired at the Contractor’s 
discretion.  

 
VIII. Cancellation of Contract. If the Contractor falls below acceptable industry 

standards in its performance of the services provided for in the scope of this agreement, 
the Owner/ Agent shall notify the Contractor in writing of each specific deficiencies. 
The Contractor requests to be given the opportunity to remedy the stated deficiencies.  
 
Should the Owner/ Agent at any time wish to terminate this agreement, this agreement 
may be terminated with or without cause by either party with thirty (30) days written 
notice.  
 
Should it become necessary for either party to institute legal action for the enforcement 
of any provisions of this agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to 
reimbursement for all court costs and reasonable attorney’s fees incident to such legal 
action. 

  
IX. Pre-Existing Conditions. Contractor shall not be held liable or responsible for 

any pre-existing conditions or damaged caused by others, hurricanes, lightning, 
tornadoes, severe wind, freezes, frosts, floods, drought, construction work, or any other 
Acts of God. Contractor shall further not be held liable or responsible for damage to 
turf and/ or landscaping caused by mandatory water restrictions placed on the property 
by the governing water district. 
 

X. Scope of Services. The work and services of this agreement are to provide 
landscape and lawn maintenance of the aforementioned property. The scope of services, 
as outlined below, are necessary to sustain all turf and plant materials in a healthy, 
aesthetically pleasing condition and to maintain a completely operational irrigation 
system. All associated plant areas are to be kept in a continuously healthy, neat, clean, 
and debris-free condition while this agreement is in force. 

 
a. Mowing. Mowing of all turf areas will be performed once per week during the 

summer months of April through October 15th and once every other week during 



Page 4 of 5 
 

the months of October 16th through March, based on the dormancy of the grass. 
Based on the dormancy of the grass during the winter months, further reduction of 
mowing frequency may be warranted. 

b. Edging. Edging of all sidewalks, curbs, pathways, and other paved surfaces 
will be performed during each mowing cycle. Edging s to be defined as outlining 
and/or removing turf from the above mentioned borders by use of a mechanical 
edger. 

c. Trimming. Trimming around obstacles where a mower cannot reach, such as 
around sign posts, trees, shrubs, or poles, shall be completed during each mowing 
cycle by use of a string trimmer, chemical, or other mechanical means. 

d. Blowing. Walks, curbs, and other paved surfaces adjacent to turf areas and/or 
other landscaping elements will be kept clean of debris generated by the performance 
of lawn maintenance services. When using forced air machinery, care will be taken to 
prevent blowing grass clippings into beds or onto hardscape surfaces. 

e. Plant area Detailing.  Detailing of all plant material will be performed in a 
sectional method, with the frequency of rotation being a minimum or once every 
three to four weeks for each individual section. The detailing process will include 
trimming, pruning, and shaping of all shrubbery, ornamental trees and groundcovers, 
removal of under story tree suckers as well as the defining of bed lines, tree saucers, 
and the removal of unwanted vegetation (weeds). 

f. Tree Trimming & Pruning.  Under story trees and street trees located in 
common areas will be canopied up to 8’ – 10’ in a manner that will prevent 
interference with pedestrian walkways, streets, ad will assist in the overall general 
appearance of the property. Any tree canopies exceeding 10’ in height or limbs larger 
than 1.5” are not included in this agreement but can be requested for an additional 
service fee on an as-needed basis. 

Palm trees up to 12’ in height will be trimmed of excess fronds and unwanted seed 
pods and debris during the sectional rotation. Trimming of palm trees in excess of 
12’ in height and all specimen palm trees requiring additional equipment or special 
techniques are not covered in this agreement but can be requested for an additional 
service fee on an as-needed basis. 

g. Excessive Debris. Clean-up and removal of storm damage debris, fallen trees, 
tree limbs, or excessive debris is not covered under this agreement but can be 
requested for an additional service fee on an as-needed basis. 

h. Irrigation Maintenance. Inspection of irrigation system, to include activating 
each zone of the system, checking for clogged heads or nozzles, checking irrigation 
heads for proper height and rotation, checking for leaks in pipes and heads, checking 
for damaged or missing heads, and checking the controller for proper watering 
schedule and resetting if necessary shall be performed on a monthly basis. 

 
This agreement does not include irrigation repairs, parts, or labor, which will be 
billed as an additional cost. 
 



Page 5 of 5 
 

To minimize damage and lead-time, Owner/ Agent may pre-authorize the 
Contractor to make necessary irrigation repairs during the monthly inspection at an 
amount not exceed $_________ per month to be billed in addition to normal 
service. Any irrigation repair exceeding this agreed upon amount will require written 
approval as a separate work order. 

i. Spray and Fertilization Custom blended fertilization application and weed, 
insect, and disease control for beds and St. Augustine turf are included in this 
agreement. 

j. Additional Services.  Additional products and services, such as mulch, bed 
dressing, or annual installation, is not included in this agreement but can be 
requested for an additional fee to be billed in addition to normal monthly service. 

XI. Entire Agreement. This Lawn Maintenance Service Agreement contains the sole 
and entire agreement between the parties with respect to the subject matter of this 
agreement and supersedes any and all other prior or contemporaneous written or oral 
agreements or understandings between them with respect to the subject matter 
contained herein. 

XII. Agreed and Accepted. The parties hereto have duly entered and executed this 
agreement as of the day ad year first above written. The undersigned parties warrant that 
they are authorized representatives of the respective companies and/ or properties and 
have the requisite authority to bind their employer and/ or principal.  

 
 
 
 
Randy Suggs, Inc.      Owner/ Agent 
 
 
 
_________________________    _________________________  
Authorized Signature     Authorized Signature 
 
 
_________________________    _________________________ 
Name and Title      Name and Title 
 
 
___/___/___       ___/___/___ 
Date        Date 





















  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 7 



 
 

Prepared By: 
Graybar Financial Services 
Rachel Sthay 
(314) 573-2508 
rachel.sthay@graybar.com 
04/16/2018 

Financing Prepared For: 
Avalon Grove Community Development District 
Patricia Comings-Thibault 
250 International Pkwy 
Suite 280 

 (321) 263-0132 
patricia.comings-thibault@dpfg.com 

11885 Lackland Road 

St. Louis, MO 63146 

Phone: 800-241-7408 

Fax: 800-543-0247 

 
 

 
Project Description: Energy Savings Project Investment: $89,652.50 

 
 

 

 
Lighting Cost Analysis 
 
Total Project Investment 

 
 

Net of Sales Tax 

 
 

$89,652.50 

 
 

 
Monthly Lease Cash Flow Analysis 24 Months 36 Months 48 Months 60 Months 

 

Monthly Lease Payment $4,247.73 $2,912.80 $2,245.79 $1769.74 
 

 
 

Utilize a financing option to make your energy efficiency upgrade a reality today. Don't waste money by putting off a 
project that can generate valuable savings every month due to budgetary restrictions. 

Financing can provide: 
• Cash flow positive savings on day one 
• An alternative payment method that does not demand a large cash outlay 
• The ability to implement a money saving project regardless of the annual budget 
• The benefit of future savings on rising energy costs 
• Flexibility with how the rebate is handled 
• Possible financing structures that qualify as operating expenses 

Call GFS today and let the experts create a custom made solution for you! 

mailto:rachel.sthay@graybar.com
mailto:patricia.comings-thibault@dpfg.com


  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 8 





  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 9 



Oath of Office 
 

 I,  ____________________, a resident of the State of Florida and citizen of the United 
States of America, and being a Supervisor of the Avalon Groves Community Development 
District and a recipient of public funds on behalf of the District, do hereby solemnly swear or 
affirm that I will support the Constitution of the United States and the Constitution of the State of 
Florida, and will faithfully, honestly and impartially discharge the duties devolving upon me in 
the office of Supervisor of the Avalon Groves Community Development District, Lake County, 
Florida. 
 
 
 
   
 Print Name 
 
         
 Signature 
 
   
 Date 
 
 
 Sworn to (or affirmed) before me this ____ day of ____________, 2018 by 
_______________________________ whose signature appears hereinabove. 
 
 
 
   
 Notary Public State of Florida 
 
 
   
 Print Name 
 
 My Commission expires 
 
 
Personally known             or produced identification  
Type of identification  
 

 
 















  

 

 

 

EXHIBIT 10 



RESOLUTION 2018-03 
 

A RESOLUTION DESIGNATING OFFICERS OF THE 
AVALON GROVES COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT 
 

 WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of the Avalon Groves Community Development 
District at the meeting held on April 26, 2018 desires to appoint the below recited persons to the 
offices specified. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS OF AVALON GROVES COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT: 
 1.  The following persons were appointed to the offices shown, to wit: 
 

   Chairman 

   Vice Chairman 

  Patricia Comings-Thibault Secretary 

  Patricia Comings-Thibault Treasurer 

  Maik Aagaard Assistant Treasurer  

  ____________________________________ Assistant Secretary 

   Assistant Secretary 

   Assistant Secretary 

  Janet Johns Assistant Secretary 

 

2. That this resolution supersedes all previous resolutions and motions designating, 

electing or appointing officers adopted by the Board of Supervisors of the Avalon Groves 

Community Development District and are hereby declared null and void. 

  Adopted this 26th day of April, 2018. 
 

                                                                       Avalon Groves Community Development District 
 
   
 
 Chairman 
 
   


	Exhibit 2 Avalon Groves - March 2018.pdf
	Cover
	Bal_Sheet
	P&L
	2017A-1 AA1
	2017A-1 AA2
	2017A-2 AA2
	CIP (A-1 AA1)
	CIP (A1-AA2)
	CIP (A-2 AA2)
	BANKREC
	Check Register

	Exhibit 3A Change Order Tracker.pdf
	Sheet1




